

BYLAWS
OF
FOUNDATION FOR A SMOKE-FREE WORLD, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I Offices and Registered Agent 1

ARTICLE II Membership..... 1

ARTICLE III Board of Directors..... 2

ARTICLE IV Officers 4

ARTICLE V Committees 6

ARTICLE VI Contracts, Checks, Deposits and Funds..... 8

ARTICLE VII Indemnification..... 9

ARTICLE VIII Conflict of Interest Policy 12

ARTICLE IX Scientific Integrity 18

ARTICLE X Fiscal Year 20

ARTICLE XI Future Laws 20

ARTICLE XII Miscellaneous 20

ARTICLE XIII Amendments 21

BYLAWS
OF
FOUNDATION FOR A SMOKE-FREE WORLD, INC.

ARTICLE I

Offices and Registered Agent

Section 1. Principal Office. The principal office of Foundation for a Smoke-Free World, Inc., a non-profit, non-stock corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware (hereinafter the “Corporation”), shall be at such suitable place within or without the State of Delaware as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine.

Section 2. Registered Office and Agent. The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain a registered office in the State of Delaware (which may be identical with the principal office) and the Board of Directors of the Corporation shall appoint and continuously maintain in service a registered agent in the State of Delaware, who shall be an individual resident of the State of Delaware or an authorized corporate registered agent.

Section 3. Other Offices. The Corporation may have such other office or offices, at such suitable place or places within or without the State of Delaware as the Board of Directors may from time to time determine as necessary for the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation.

ARTICLE II

Membership

The Directors of the Corporation shall be the Members of the Corporation for all purposes. All actions, consents and approvals taken by the Directors shall be deemed to be taken by them as Members whenever so required, whether or not the specific action, consent or approval specifically references them as acting as Members at the time.

ARTICLE III

Board of Directors

Section 1. Classes, Number, Election and Term of Office. There shall be one class of Directors. The number of Directors shall be fixed by the Directors from time to time. Each Director shall hold office for a term of two (2) years and until his or her successor is duly elected and qualified or until his or her earlier resignation, removal from office or death. Directors shall be elected at each Annual Meeting of Directors, or if such meeting is not held or Directors are not elected thereat, at a special meeting of Directors called for that purpose. Each Director shall be considered for quorum purposes and shall be entitled to vote at any meeting of the Directors. As used in this Article III, “year” shall mean the period from one Annual Meeting of Directors until the close of the next Annual Meeting of Directors, and if a Director is elected at a special meeting, it shall mean the period from such special meeting until the close of the next Annual Meeting of Directors.

Section 2. Resignation or Removal. Any Director, by notice in writing to the Board of Directors, may resign at any time. Any Director may be removed from office with or without cause at a meeting of Members by a majority vote of all of the Members.

Section 3. Vacancies. A vacancy in a Director shall be filled by a majority vote of all of the Directors then serving at a special Meeting.

Section 4. Quorum. Except with respect to the filling of a vacancy in the Board, a majority of the Directors then serving entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Directors.

Section 5. Meetings of Directors. The Annual Meeting of Directors shall be held at such date, time and place within the first twelve (12) months following the end of the

fiscal year of the Corporation as may be fixed by the Directors, or by an officer of the Corporation authorized by the Board, and as stated in the notice of the meeting. Special Meetings of the Directors may be called by the President, or, in the case of the President's absence, death or disability, by the Vice President, or by a majority of the Directors.

Section 6. Notice of Meetings of Board of Directors. Written notice of the time and place of each meeting of the Directors shall be given to each Director by the Secretary or by the person or persons calling the meeting by personal delivery, mail, telegram, telecopy or electronic mail not less than five (5) days before the date of such meeting. Such notice need not specify the purposes of the meeting. Notice of any meeting shall be considered given if mailed or otherwise sent or delivered in writing to the Director at his or her address as specified in the records of the Corporation or when delivery by telecopy or electronic transmission is confirmed. Notice shall be deemed to have been waived by any Director who shall attend and participate in such meeting without protesting, prior to or at the commencement of such meeting, the lack of proper notice and may be waived, in writing, by any Director either before, at or after such meeting.

Section 7. Voting. Except as otherwise specifically provided in these Bylaws, the Certificate of Incorporation or as is required by law, action approved by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Directors voting at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the action of the Board of Directors; provided, however, that for purposes of dissolution of the Corporation pursuant to Section 276 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, any action taken pursuant to Section 276 of the Delaware General Corporation Law shall require the approval by the affirmative vote of two-thirds ($\frac{2}{3}$) of the Directors then serving entitled to vote.

Section 8. Powers. The Board of Directors shall have general charge of the affairs, property and assets of the Corporation. It shall be the duty of the Directors to carry out the aims and purposes of the Corporation and, to this end, to manage and control all of its property and assets.

Section 9. Action Without Meeting. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Directors may be taken without a meeting by writing or writings signed by all of the Directors. The writing or writings evidencing an action taken without a meeting shall be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation and inserted in the permanent records relating to meetings of the Directors.

Section 10. Meetings Held Through Communications Equipment. Meetings of the Directors may be held through communications equipment if all persons participating can hear each other, and such participation shall constitute presence at such a meeting.

Section 11. Advisor Directors. The Board of Directors may from time to time appoint non-voting Advisor Directors. Such Advisor Directors shall serve at the pleasure of the Directors and may be removed with or without cause at any time. Persons appointed as Advisor Directors may be invited to attend meetings of the Board of Directors. Advisor Directors who attend a Board of Directors meeting may participate in such meeting, but they shall not be counted for quorum purposes and shall not be entitled to vote on any Corporation business.

ARTICLE IV

Officers

Section 1. Election. The officers of the Corporation shall consist of a President, a Secretary and a Treasurer and such number of Vice Presidents and other officers as the Directors shall designate from time to time. The officers shall be elected at the Annual Meeting of the Directors. Each officer shall hold office until the date fixed in accordance with

these Bylaws for the Annual Meeting of the Directors next following the election of such officers and until his or her successor is elected and qualified; provided, any officer may be removed with or without cause by the Directors.

Section 2. President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation and, subject to the overall guidance and supervision of the Board of Directors, shall actively direct, manage and control the business affairs of the Corporation. The President may sign, with the Secretary or any other officer of the Corporation so authorized by the Board of Directors, any deeds, mortgages, bonds, contracts or other instruments which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors, these Bylaws or by statute to some other officer or agent of the Corporation; and in general, the President shall perform all duties incident to the office of President and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 3. Vice President. The Vice President, if any be elected, shall assist the President in managing the affairs of the Corporation. During the absence or disability of the President, the Vice President shall have all the powers and functions of the President and shall preside at meetings of the Board of Directors. The Vice President shall also have other powers and perform such other duties as the Board of Directors may from time to time prescribe.

Section 4. Secretary. The Secretary shall keep minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law; be custodian of the corporate records of the Corporation; receive the annual statements and disclosures required by Article VIII hereof and in general perform all duties incident to the office of Secretary and

such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to the Secretary by the President or the Board of Directors.

Section 5. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be the chief financial officer of the Corporation and shall have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of the Corporation; receive and give receipts for moneys due and payable to the Corporation from any source whatsoever, and deposit all such moneys in the name of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as shall be selected in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws; render reports on the financial condition of the Corporation; and in general perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer and such other duties as from time to time may be assigned to the Treasurer by the President or by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE V

Committees

Section 1. General Committees. The Board of Directors shall have an Audit Committee and a Science Oversight Committee and by resolution, may designate, and appoint the members of, one or more committees consisting of one or more persons, including, but not limited to, directors and others, which committees shall have such authority as the Board of Directors shall determine; provided, however, no committee having members who are not directors shall have or exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Corporation.

Section 2. Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall have responsibility for overseeing the accounting and financial reporting system and processes of the Corporation including, overseeing the compilation, review or audit of the financial statements of the Corporation and selecting an independent accountant or auditor to compile, review or audit the financial statements of the Corporation.

Section 3. Science Oversight Committee: The Science Oversight Committee shall be comprised of independent and experienced researchers, scientists and policy experts and one or more directors and shall be chaired by a member of the Board of Directors, and shall have such responsibilities and duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 4. Committees of the Board. The Board of Directors, by resolution, may designate, and appoint the members of, one or more committees consisting of one or more directors, which committees, to the extent provided by the Board of Directors, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the Corporation, except that no such committee shall have the authority of the Board of Directors to amend, alter or repeal these Bylaws; to elect, appoint or remove any member of any such committee or any director or officer of the Corporation; to amend or restate the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation; to adopt a plan of merger or plan of consolidation with another corporation; to authorize the sale, lease, exchange or mortgage of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the Corporation; to authorize the voluntary dissolution of the Corporation or revoke proceedings therefor; to adopt a plan for the distribution of the assets of the Corporation; or to amend, alter or repeal any resolution of the Board of Directors which by its terms provides that it shall not be amended, altered or repealed by such committee. The designation and appointment of any such committee and the delegation thereto of authority shall not operate to relieve the Board of Directors, or any individual director, of any responsibility imposed by law and/or the Bylaws.

Section 5. Term of Office. Each member of a committee shall serve as such until his or her successor is appointed and qualified, unless the committee shall be sooner

terminated, such member is removed from such committee, or such member shall cease to qualify as a member thereof.

Section 6. Removal. Any member of a committee may be removed by the Board of Directors at any time, with or without cause.

Section 7. Vacancies. Vacancies in the membership of any committee may be filled by the Board of Directors at any time.

Section 8. Quorum and Manner of Acting. Unless otherwise provided by the Board of Directors, a majority of the whole committee shall constitute a quorum, and the act of a majority of the members present at a committee meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the committee.

Section 9. Action Without Meeting. Any action which can be taken at any meeting of a committee may be taken without a meeting by writing or writings signed by all of the members of such committee. The writing or writings evidencing an action taken without a meeting shall be filed with the Secretary of the Corporation and inserted in the permanent records relating to meetings of the members of such committee.

Section 10. Rules. Each committee may adopt rules for its own governance not inconsistent with these Bylaws or with rules adopted by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI

Contracts, Checks, Deposits and Funds

Section 1. Contracts. The Board of Directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation, in addition to the officers so authorized by these Bylaws, to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.

Section 2. Checks, Drafts, etc. All checks, drafts or orders for the payment of money, notes or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation, shall be signed by such officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution of the Board of Directors. In the absence of such determination by the Board of Directors, such instruments shall be signed by the Treasurer and countersigned by the President or the Vice President of the Corporation.

Section 3. Deposits. All funds of the Corporation shall be deposited from time to time to the credit of the Corporation in such banks, trust companies or other depositories as the appropriate officer or officers, agent or agents of the Corporation may select.

Section 4. Gifts. The Board of Directors may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest or devise for the general purposes or for any special purpose of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VII

Indemnification

Section 1. Authorization.

A. In the event that any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed civil, criminal, administrative or investigative action, suit or proceeding seeks indemnification from the Corporation against expenses (including attorneys' fees) and, in the case of actions other than those by or in the right of the Corporation, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement, actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that such person is or was a Director or officer of the Corporation, or while a Director or officer of the Corporation is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a trustee, director, officer, employee, agent or volunteer of another corporation (domestic or foreign, nonprofit, or for

profit), partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise, then, unless such indemnification is ordered by a court, the Corporation shall determine or cause to be determined in the manner provided in Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law whether or not indemnification is proper in the circumstances because the person claiming such indemnification has met the applicable standards of conduct set forth in Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law and, to the extent that it is so determined that such indemnification is proper, the person claiming such indemnification shall be indemnified.

B. Expenses, including attorneys' fees, incurred by a Director or officer in defending any action, suit or proceeding referred to in Paragraph A of this Section may be paid by the Corporation as they are incurred in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding, as authorized by the Directors in the specific case upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the Director or officer to repay such amount if it ultimately is determined that such person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation as authorized in this Article.

C. The indemnification authorized by Paragraph A of this Section shall not be deemed exclusive of, and shall be in addition to, any other rights granted to those seeking indemnification, pursuant to the Certificate of Incorporation, these Bylaws, any agreement, vote of Members or disinterested Directors, or otherwise, both as to action in their official capacities and as to action in another capacity while holding their offices or positions, and shall continue as to a person who has ceased to be a Director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, and administrators of such a person.

D. The Corporation may, to the extent authorized from time to time, grant rights to indemnification and to the advancement of expenses to any employee, agent or volunteer of the

Corporation to the fullest extent of the provisions of this Article VII with respect to the indemnification and advancement of expenses of Directors and officers of the Corporation.

E. For purposes of this Article, the term “volunteer” means a Director, officer, or agent of the Corporation, or another person associated with the Corporation, who satisfies both of the following: (1) Performs services for or on behalf of, and under the authority or auspices of, the Corporation; and (2) Does not receive compensation, either directly or indirectly, for performing those services.

F. The provisions of Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law applicable to automatic advance payment of expenses shall not apply to this Corporation.

Section 2. Insurance. The Corporation, to the extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law, may purchase and maintain insurance or furnish similar protection including, but not limited to, trust funds, letters of credit or self-insurance for or on behalf of any person who is or was a Director, officer, employee, agent or volunteer of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a trustee, director, officer, employee, agent or volunteer of another corporation (domestic or foreign, nonprofit, or for profit), partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise.

Section 3. Limitation. Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, the Corporation shall not indemnify Directors or officers or other persons or entities, pay their expenses in advance, or pay insurance premiums on their behalf if such indemnification payment, advance expense payment, or payment of insurance premium shall constitute an “excess benefit transaction” within the meaning of Section 4958 of the Code or an act of “self-dealing” within the meaning of Section 4941(d) of the Code.

ARTICLE VIII

Conflict of Interest Policy

Section 1. Purpose. The purpose of this conflict of interest policy is to protect the Corporation's interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of a Director, officer, member of a committee with Board-delegated powers, a staff member of the Corporation, or any of their first degree relative(s). This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state laws governing conflicts of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable corporations.

Section 2. Definitions.

A. Interested Person. Any Director, officer, member of a committee with Board-delegated powers, staff member of the Corporation, or any of their first degree relative(s) who has a direct or indirect Financial Interest, as defined below, is an "Interested Person".

B. Financial Interest. A person has a "Financial Interest" if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment or family

1. an ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement, or

2. a compensation arrangement with the Corporation or with any entity or individual with which the Corporation has a transaction or arrangement, or

3. a potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the Corporation is negotiating a transaction or arrangement, or

4. an ownership or investment interest in a tobacco and/or nicotine-containing products company or in any commercial entity involved in the tobacco reduction or

cessation field or that otherwise may be affected by the scientific research conducted or funded by the Corporation.

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are substantial in nature. An Interested Person's Financial Interest shall be considered as a conflict of interest unless waived by the Board of Directors or appropriate committee.

Section 3. Procedures.

A. Duty to Disclose, Defer and Cease. If an Interested Person has any actual or possible conflicts of interest, such person must disclose the existence and nature of his or her Financial Interest and all material facts to the Board of Directors or committee members considering the proposed transaction or arrangement. Any person who believes an action may be a conflict of interest shall defer or cease engaging in such activity until such time as a final written determination is made under this Article that proceeding is not inappropriate under the circumstances. The Board of Directors shall make such determinations in its sole and unreviewable discretion.

B. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists. After disclosure of the Financial Interest and all material facts, and after discussion with the Interested Person, such person shall leave the Board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest or the appropriateness to waive it is discussed and voted upon.

C. Procedures for Addressing Conflicts of Interest.

1. An Interested Person may make a presentation at the Board or committee meeting, but after such presentation, he or she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement that results in the conflict of interest.

2. The chairperson of the Board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.

3. After exercising due diligence, the Board or committee shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain a more advantageous transaction or arrangement with reasonable efforts from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.

4. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably attainable under circumstances that would not give rise to a conflict of interest, the Board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested Directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the Corporation's best interest, for its own benefit and whether the transaction is fair and reasonable to the Corporation and shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement in conformity with such determination.

D. Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy.

1. If the Board or committee has reasonable cause to believe that a person has failed to disclose actual or potential conflicts of interest or to provide full disclosure regarding a possible conflict of interest, it shall inform the person of the basis for such belief and afford the person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.

2. If, after hearing the response of the person and making such further investigation as may be warranted in the circumstances, the Board or committee determines that the person has in fact failed to appropriately disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take whatever disciplinary action, corrective action, or both, it deems appropriate in its sole and unreviewable discretion.

Section 4. Records of Proceedings. The minutes of the Board and all committees with board-delegated powers shall contain

A. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a Financial Interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the Financial Interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the Board's or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed, and whether to waive it.

B. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement; the content of the discussion, including all material facts, any alternatives to the proposed action or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection therewith.

Section 5. Compensation Committees. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Corporation for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.

Section 6. Annual Statements and Disclosures.

A. Statements. Each Director, officer, member of a committee with Board-delegated powers and staff member shall annually sign a statement which affirms that such person:

1. has received a copy of the conflict of interest policy;
2. has read and understands the policy;
3. has agreed to comply with the policy; and

4. understands that the Corporation is a charitable organization and that in order to maintain its federal tax exemption, it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

B. Initial and Annual Written Disclosures. Each Director, officer, member of a committee with Board-delegated powers and staff member, prior to his or her initial election, appointment or employment, and thereafter on an annual basis, shall disclose in writing to the Secretary of the Corporation, to the best of such person's knowledge, (i) any entity of which such person is an officer, director, trustee, member, owner, or employee with which the Corporation has a relationship; (ii) any transaction in which the Corporation is a participant and in which such person might have a conflicting interest; (iii) any ownership or investment interest, direct or indirect, through business, investment or family, in a tobacco and/or nicotine-containing products company or in any commercial entity involved in the tobacco reduction or cessation field or that otherwise may be affected by the scientific research conducted or funded by the Corporation; and (iv) any past or present financial relationship, including, but not limited to, salary or wages, remuneration, consulting fees, honoraria, expert testimony fees or speaking engagement fees received by such person from the tobacco industry, or from any commercial entity involved in the development and/or commercialization of nicotine-containing products or tobacco reduction or cessation field or that otherwise may be affected by the scientific research conducted or funded by the Corporation. The Secretary of the Corporation shall provide copies of all completed initial and annual written disclosures to the chairperson of the Board of Directors.

C. Grant and Contract Recipients and Grant Application Reviewers. The Corporation shall require, during the process for screening, reviewing and awarding grants and contracts, that each grant and contract recipient, as may be appropriate, and grant application

reviewer, disclose in writing to the Corporation (i) any ownership or investment interest, direct or indirect, through business, investment or family, in a tobacco company or in any commercial entity involved in the development and/or commercialization of nicotine-containing products or the tobacco reduction or cessation field or that otherwise may be affected by the scientific research conducted or funded by the Corporation and (ii) any past or present financial relationship, including, but not limited to, salary or wages, remuneration, consulting fees, honoraria, expert testimony fees or speaking engagement fees received by such person from the tobacco industry, or from any commercial entity involved in the development and/or commercialization of nicotine-containing products or tobacco reduction or cessation field or that otherwise may be affected by the scientific research conducted or funded by the Corporation.

Section 7. Periodic Reviews. To ensure that the Corporation operates in a manner consistent with its charitable purposes and that it does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its status as an organization exempt from federal income tax, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects:

A. whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable and are the result of arm's-length bargaining; and

B. whether partnership and joint venture arrangements, and arrangements with management service organizations conform to written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable payments for goods and services, further the Corporation's charitable purposes and do not result in private inurement or impermissible private benefit.

Section 8. Use of Outside Experts. In conducting periodic reviews provided for herein, the Corporation may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used,

their use shall not relieve the Board of Directors of its responsibility for ensuring that periodic reviews are conducted.

ARTICLE IX

Scientific Integrity

The Corporation shall be operated consistent with the following criteria and principles in accomplishing the Corporation's objects and purposes: (i) as set forth in Article THIRD of the Corporation's Certificate of Incorporation; and (ii) in a manner that ensures the Corporation's freedom and independence from the influence of any commercial entity:

A. Independent Research Agenda: The goal of the Corporation is to promote and support significant scientific research that advances the field of tobacco harm reduction and reduces the public health burden of smoking-related diseases. No resources shall be devoted to the potential impact of that research on the image of the tobacco industry or any other industry or commercial entity. The Corporation's research program shall be guided by experienced researchers, scientists and policy experts in accordance with the Corporation's objects and purposes. The Corporation shall review past models of funding tobacco control research and identify the feasibility of incorporating additional independence and transparency elements, or other best practices, into the process for screening, reviewing and awarding grants and other distributions in furtherance of the Corporation's objects and purposes.

B. Governance: The Board of Directors of the Corporation, or a specially designated committee, as may be designated by resolution of the Board of Directors, shall oversee all aspects of the process for screening, reviewing and awarding grants and other distributions in furtherance of the Corporation's objects and purposes.

C. Transparency and Independence: The process for screening, reviewing and awarding grants and other distributions shall be conducted in a transparent manner and include explicit and clear guidelines for grant applicants. The grant selection process shall be conducted by the Corporation, supported by independent peer review with no influence, involvement or participation from the tobacco industry or any other industry or commercial entity;

D. Competitive Funding Process: The Corporation shall employ a competitive funding process in screening, reviewing and awarding grants and other distributions that ensures that the grant selection process is based on explicit, well established scientific criteria;

E. Protection Against Conflicts of Interest: The Corporation shall maintain a written conflicts of interest policy which includes, *inter alia*, adequate protections in place to guard against potential conflicts of interest on the part of grant recipients and grant application reviewers. The conflicts of interest policy shall govern the disclosure of relevant financial relationships, including, but not limited to, salary or wages, remuneration, consulting fees, honoraria, expert testimony fees or speaking engagement fees received by grant recipients or grant application reviewers from the tobacco industry or any other industry or commercial entity; and

F. Ownership of Data and Freedom to Publish: To safeguard the scientific integrity of each research endeavor the Corporation shall ensure, unless prohibited by law, that grant recipients shall have the freedom to publish their findings, studies and results in the form submitted to the Corporation. Irrespective of which party owns the data, to the extent legally possible, the Corporation shall require grant recipients to make their raw research data available for secondary analyses and review on an open access platform.

ARTICLE X

Fiscal Year

The fiscal year of the Corporation shall end on the last day of December, or on such other date as may be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XI

Future Laws

All references in these Bylaws to sections of the “Code” are to sections of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, or to the corresponding provisions of any future United States internal revenue law. All references herein to the Delaware General Corporation Law are to the provisions of such law, as amended from time to time, or to the corresponding provisions of any subsequent Delaware corporation law.

ARTICLE XII

Miscellaneous

Record of Members and Directors

The Secretary of the Corporation shall keep a record of the names of all Members and Directors, together with the last known mailing address, and email address, of each Member and Director, which record may be included in and be a part of the book containing the minutes of meetings of Members and of Directors. There shall also be stated therein the date upon which each Member or Director became such, and upon the termination of any membership or Directorship for any cause, the facts relating thereto shall be recorded in said book, together with the date of such termination. It shall be the duty of every Member and Director, upon becoming such, to furnish forthwith to the Secretary of the Corporation, for inclusion in such record, his or her then mailing address and email address, and likewise to report promptly to the Secretary for inclusion in such record any change in any such addresses.

ARTICLE XIII

Amendments

The Certificate of Incorporation and these Bylaws may be amended or repealed and new Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws may be adopted upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds ($\frac{2}{3}$) of the Directors then serving entitled to vote. An amendment shall be effective immediately after adoption by the Directors unless a later effective date is specifically adopted at the time the amendment is enacted.